ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 9, 2004
8:01 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 438
"An Act relating to notorists noving over or slowng down for
energency vehicles."

- MOVED CSHB 438(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 423
"An Act relating to accidents involving the vehicle of a person
under the influence of an al coholic beverage; and providing for
an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 423( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO 31

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund and to paynents to certain
state residents from the Al aska permanent fund; and providing
for an effective date for the anmendnents.

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 527
"An Act relating to the Alaska Securities Act, including

reports, proxies, consents, authorizations, proxy statenents,
and other materials, civil penalties, refunds of proceeds from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2004



violations, restitution, and investnent adviser representatives;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 431
"An Act relating to the nmunicipal dividend program and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 459
"An Act requiring an auditable paper trail for electronic voting
machi nes; and providing for an effective date.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 438
SHORT TI TLE. MOVE OVER LAW FOR DRI VERS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

02/ 05/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 04 (H TRA, STA, JUD

02/ 17/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 17/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 24/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 24/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 24/ 04 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 26/ 04 (H) TRA RPT 3DP 2NR

02/ 26/ 04 (H DP: OGG, STEPOVICH, HOLM NR. MASEK,
02/ 26/ 04 (H KOHRI NG

03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 423

SHORT TI TLE: TAXI CAB DRI VER LI ABI LI TY
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) ANDERSON

02/ 02/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (H JuD

02/ 02/ 04 (H STA REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
02/ 09/ 04 (H) REFERRAL ORDER CHANGED

02/ 09/ 04 (H STA, JUD

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

02/ 10/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 02/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2004



03/ 02/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 05/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HIJR 31

SHORT TITLE: CONST AM PERMVANENT FUND
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

01/ 02/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 (H) WM STA, JUD, FIN

01/ 23/ 04 (H WeM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
01/ 23/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 23/ 04 (H) M NUTE( V&M

02/ 04/ 04 (H WeM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
02/ 04/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 04 (H M NUTE( &M

02/ 18/ 04 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
02/ 18/ 04 (H) Moved CSHIR 31(W&M Qut of Committee
02/ 18/ 04 (H M NUTE( &M

02/ 19/ 04 (H) WM RPT CS(W&M) NT 6NR

02/ 19/ 04 (H) NR. WEYHRAUCH, SAMJELS, WLSON, OGG,
02/ 19/ 04 (H MOSES, HAWKER

03/ 04/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 09/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 527
SHORT TITLE: ALASKA SECURI TI ES ACT
SPONSOR(S): STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 01/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 01/ 04 (H) STA, JUD, FIN
03/ 09/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 431
SHORT TI TLE: MUNI Cl PAL DI VI DEND PROGRAM
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MOSES

02/ 04/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 04 (H) CRA, STA, FIN

02/ 26/ 04 (H) CRA RPT 3DP 2NR

02/ 26/ 04 (H) DP: KOTT, Cl SSNA, MORGAN;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2004



02/ 26/ 04 (H) NR: SAMUELS, WOLF

02/ 26/ 04 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 26/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 26/ 04 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 459
SHORT TITLE: PAPER TRAIL FOR ELECTRONI C VOTI NG MACHI NE
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GARA

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) STA
03/ 09/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

MATTHEW RUDI G, St af f

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 438 on behal f of
Representative Hol m sponsor.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Marshall

Division of Fire Prevention

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Addressed the conmittee's previously stated
questions during the hearing on HB 438.

SHELLEY OWENS, Heal th Program Manager

Community Heal th & Enmergency Medical Services

Di vision of Public Health

Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent in
support of HB 438.

JIM SHI NE, Staff

to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comment on behal f of
Represent ati ve Anderson, sponsor, during the hearing one HB 423.

JOHN MALLONEE, Acting Director
Central Ofice

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2004



Chil d Support Enforcenent D vision (CSED)

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the CSED
during the hearing on HIR 31.

DONALD ANDERSON

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: testifying on behalf of hinmself, commented
on the effect of the federal inconme tax on the PFD, and the
$20, 000 payout proposed in HIR 31.

MARK DAVI S, Director

Di vision of Banking, Securities & Corporations

Department of Community & Regi onal Devel opnent ( DCED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of DCED to outline
three things HB 527 would acconplish that the division thinks
are inportant.

VI NCE USERA, Senior Securities Exam ner

Di vi sion of Banking Securities & Corporations

Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 527.

FRED TRIEM Attorney at Law

Pet ersburg, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on his own behalf in support of
[HB 527], but with two qualifications.

ADAM BERG, St aff

to Representative Carl Moses

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Moses, sponsor of HB 431.

DOUG STARK, Ph.D., Council Menber

City of Homer

Honmer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the City of Homer in
support of HB 431.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2004



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 459.

LEONARD JONES, El ections Special Assistant

Central Ofice

Di vision of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
di vision during the hearing on HB 459.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-33, SIDE A
Number 0001

[Due to technical difficulty, there are approximtely two
m nutes of blank tape. The following is reconstructed from the
commttee secretary's | og notes.]

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Coghill, and Wyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Berkowitz, and Guenberg arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

HB 438- MOVE OVER LAW FOR DRI VERS

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 438, "An Act relating to notorists noving over or
sl owi ng down for energency vehicles.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt HB 438 as a work draft.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

[ Tape recordi ng begins here.]
Number 0165

MATTHEW RUDI G Staff to Representative Jim Holm Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 438 on behalf of Representative Holm
sponsor . He enphasized the danger to energency personnel
working along the shoulder of a roadway. According to the
Nati onal Menorial Oficers' Fund, from 1997 through 2002, 93 |aw
enforcement officers were struck and killed by notorists, while
wor king along the sides of a roadway. Many nore were injured,
he noted, while substantially nore experienced "close calls.”
The bill would require drivers to slow down to 20 mles per hour

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2004



(nph) below the posted speed |imt, or to 5 nph in speed zones
of 25 nph or |ess. He said this proposed change is an attenpt
to ensure safety on the roadways.

MR. RUDIG said that establishing [HB 438] in statute encourages
the public to recognize the precaution needed while passing
energency vehicles and provides a penalty for those who refuse
to obey the law, thereby causing harm He noted that 30 other
states have enacted simlar |egislation.

MR RUDIG pointed to testinonials given by police officers in
Fai rbanks, included in the conmttee packet. Those testinonials
state how HB 438 would [positively] affect their |lives and job
safety. He encouraged the conmttee to read those testinonials.
He concl uded as fol |l ows:

These people fight for our lives every day, and |
believe that this legislation is an opportunity for
the legislature to fight for theirs.

Nunmber 0376

MR RUDIG in response to questions from Chair Wyhrauch,
clarified that the intent of the bill is to get drivers to |eave
the |l ane closest to the energency vehicle and nove over into the
| ane [farthest away from the stopped energency vehicle]. He
added that if there were only one lane, the intent of the bill
woul d then be to get the driver to slow down.

Nunmber 0446

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said sonetinmes an energency vehicle will be
driving 5-10 nph on the shoul der of a road. He asked if that
woul d be considered stationary, for purposes of "this statute.”

MR RUDIG proffered that stationary neans still, not noving;
however, he suggested asking that question of the Departnent of
Public Safety.

Nunmber 0504

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that towi ng vehicles also display
flashing I|ights. He asked if there has been any discussion
regarding [including tow trucks in the |egislation].

MR RUDIG replied that there are other state statutes that
address that, and he said that issue was discussed by the House

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2004



Transportation Standing Conmttee. However, he indicated that
after considering the issue, a decision was nade to include
those vehicles that the public recognizes as [operated by]
ener gency personnel .

Nunmber 0588

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that "we" could not find a definition
of energency vehicle in statute. He nentioned blue flashing
[lights], and he said he doesn't know if the commttee wants to
consider "anything that has any kind of flashing vehicle
beacon. " He suggested the commttee could define that [in the
proposed | egi sl ation].

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that volunteer fire [fighters] have
blue lights [they put on their vehicles], generally in transit
to a fire. He questioned whether they would actually pull over
on the side of the road, unless it was at the site of the fire,
in which case, a fire truck would probably be there, too. He
related that he has seen [tow truck drivers] pulled over on the
side of highways, where if he had been that driver, he would
have felt nervous, even with the flashing lights in use.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he wonders if a volunteer firefighter's
vehicle, with a blue light on its dash, would qualify as a fire
vehi cl e under "this statute.”

Number 0690

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH turned to [subsection] (a), [paragraph] (2),
which lists the requirements to slow to certain speeds. He said
there wouldn't be a problem with slowing nore than the anounts
specified in the bill; therefore, he suggested that the |anguage
say "at least" a certain speed.

MR. RUDI G responded that that would be fine. He said the intent
is to make people aware, so that they slow down at least to
t hose speeds indi cat ed.

Nunber 0752

KELLY NI COLELLO Assistant State Fire Marshall, Division of Fire
Prevention, Department of Public Safety, stated that the

departnment is in favor of the proposed |egislation. He
addressed questions previously asked by the commttee, as
fol |l ows: In response to the question about the inclusion of

vehicles noving slowwy on the side of the road, he clarified

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2004



that [HB 438] is intended to cover vehicles that are at a
standstill, where the driver is outside of the vehicle and
assisting a victim for exanple. He indicated that there are
different traffic laws for vehicles that are "rolling."

MR. N COLELLO, in response to the question regarding tow ng
vehicles, noted that there are laws on the books stating that

different types of vehicles will have different colored |ights.
For exanple, vyellow lights wll be on a tow truck or service
vehi cl e. He added, "That could extend to any nunber of
different people who provide services, that have to travel on
the road, but are not considered to be energency." An energency
vehicle normally has a nulti-colored red and white flashing
| i ght. In response to the question regarding the blue lights
[used by volunteer fire fighters], he said, "W" have discussed
whether or not "they ought to be included in this.” He
explained that those who use blue lights do not have any

"enmergency powers"; they can't go faster than the speed |limt,
for exanple. He added, "So, we kind of put that in the sane
perspective as the service lights, and wanted to just keep wth
the public perception of the flashing red and white lights that
you find on police and fire trucks."

Number 0898

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if that neant a vehicle wth a conbination
of lights, including the color blue, would be "excluded fromthe
coverage of this statute.”

MR. N COLELLO answered that he doesn't think so. He said a
person injured while performng duties for an energency
or gani zati on and using the l'i ght est abl i shed by that
or gani zati on woul d be covered.

Nunmber 1005
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Nicol ell o:

Is your feeling that just saying "energency Ilights”
when we've got all these different colored lights and
different jurisdictions is actually going to advise
the notoring public with definitive enough regul ations
to allow themto adequately respond to this statute?

MR. NI COLELLO responded that he believes so. He said the public

responds adequately nost of the tine to energency vehicles on
the roadway and "they pretty much know what's ahead of them if

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 9, 2004



they see it." He stated that the proposed legislation is "only
in the event that either an officer or firefighter, or energency
operations person assisting sonebody on the side of the road is
i njured by another car."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated his concern that "a little nore
standardi zation" may be needed in order for the public to
under st and what "energency |ights" neans.

Nunber 1116

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said he is curious as to how this
proposed |egislation would be enforced. He said he knows the
bill will be heard in the House Judiciary Standing Committee,
but he wants "sone confort on that."

Nunber 1174

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM told Representative Coghill that he has
consi dered the issue. He offered his understanding that there

are cases where two officers work in tandem they drive separate
vehicles and one officer tickets drivers who don't slow down for

the other officer [working on the side of the road]. He
remarked that he doesn't envision that that will be a conmmpbn
[ practice].

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that when the phrase "stationary
energency, fire, or law enforcenent vehicle" is used, it brings
to his mnd three types of vehicles: anbulances, fire vehicles,
and police vehicles. He suggested that perhaps the conmttee is
getting too wapped up with the subject of the lights, when the
real intent of the bill is to educate the public regarding
sl owi ng down.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL concurred, and he said he is actually
supportive of the bill. Not wi t hstanding that, he offered an
exanple of a person driving and talking to a child in the
vehicl e and not vacating the | ane soon enough, or a situation in
which [a police officer, for exanple] thinks a driver is going

over the speed allowed by the proposed |egislation. He
guesti oned whet her sonme kind of video nachine or speed gun would
be used. He clarified that he agrees with the concept, but is

just trying to picture [howit will be enforced].
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that many of the simlar laws in other

states don't define nunbers in mles per hour, but instead use
| anguage regarding "a prudent and reasonable nmanner." He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 9, 2004



opined, "By not defining it, of course, it leaves a lot up to
subj ection. ™ He concluded, "I don't know, this is what was
suggested as the nethod for Al aska, by the fol ks that suggested
the bill."

Nunber 1343

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he supports the concept of the bill
He reiterated that he just wants to nmake sure the public is able
to distinguish "what we're talking about.” He asked about
penal ties.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that it would be an infraction if the
person [viol ates the proposed | aw.

Nunber 1402

SHELLEY OWENS, Health Program WManager, Community Health &
Enmergency  Medi cal Servi ces, Division of Publ i c Heal t h,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), testified on
behal f of the departnment in support of HB 438. |In response to a

gquestion from Chair Wyhrauch, she also noted that she is a
volunteer firefighter and EMI [energency nedical technician].
She continued as foll ows:

It's estinmated that there's 12,000 energency nedical

vehicle collisions each year, although we don't know
how many of these are secondary collisions. The US

Fire Admnistration report said energency vehicle
crashes are the second |eading cause of death for
firefighters, after heart attacks.

The International Association of Chiefs of Police

reported that, in 1997, nearly 40 percent of all |aw
enforcenent officers who died in the line of duty died
in traffic. The longer an incident is in place, the

greater the exposure to additional crashes.

A 1995 analysis of collision statistics in California
showed an increased risk by 600 percent for secondary
collision, and, in addition, the severity of secondary
crashes is often greater than the original incident.

A study in Washington by their Depar t ment of
Transportation found that over a seven-year period,
over 3,000 shoulder collisions resulted [in] 40
deaths. And in Florida, in the period [fron] 1996 to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2004



2000, there were ... 1,793 collisions, resulting in 5
police officers being killed and 419 others injured.

In Alaska, in the four-year period from 1998 to 2001
386 energency response - defined as police, fire, and
anbul ance - vehicles were involved in accidents. 0]
the 386 <crashes, 46 incidents involved a parked
ener gency response vehicle.

The Departnent of Health & Social Services supports
efforts to reduce the nunber and severity of injuries
to fire, ENS, and law enforcenent personnel at
ener gency scenes. Equi ppi ng rescuers so that they're
nore visible on scenes, providing training to
notorists  about their responsibilities regarding
energency vehicles in scenes, and enacting |egislation
that increases the safety of rescuers, patients, and
bystanders, are all inportant neans of achieving this
goal. Consequently, the department supports HB 438.

Number 1510

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Omens if other states have data to
show the nunmber of injuries and fatalities that occurred before
and after the enactnent of this kind of statute.

M5. OVNENS answered she doesn't know. In response to a follow up
question from Chair Wyhrauch, she explained that a secondary
crash is referred to as a shoulder crash in California, and it

nmeans that a stationary vehicle was on the side of the road and
a secondary inpact occurred.

Nunmber 1552
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that public testinony was cl osed.
Number 1575

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH noved to adopt [Anmendnent 1], which read as
fol | ows:

Page 1, line 8

Bet ween "shall" and "vacate"
I nsert "safely"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he thinks that would be a good addition
to the | anguage.

Nunber 1594

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [Amendnent
1]. There being none, it was so ordered.

Nunmber 1600

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if vacating the |ane would nean that
a driver could pull his/her vehicle onto the shoulder of the
r oad.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH responded that perhaps the safest thing to do
[in some circunmstances] would be to pull over to the shoul der or

to "cut the Iline between the accident.” He offered his
understanding that the intent of the bill is to have drivers
nove their vehicles away, so that secondary crashes do not
occur, and to do so as safely as possible, which "links into the

speed you have to go on the second Section.™
Number 1657
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH not ed t hat [Anendnent 2] read as foll ows:
Page 1, line 11
Bet ween "shall slow to" and "20 mles an hour"
I nsert "at nost"
Page 1, line 12
Between "or to" and "5 mles an hour”

I nsert "at nost"”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that he had originally thought to insert
"at least”, but nowis suggesting "at nost".

Number 1670

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM expl ai ned why the phrase "at |east” would be
better than using the phrase "at nost” on line 11.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked [if that would also apply to line 12].

Nunmber 1689

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG comented that he had just | ooked at
the other state laws [regarding select states and provided in

the commttee packet]. He observed that they all are witten
simlarly to each other, but dissimlarly to the proposed [HB
438]. He clarified that those other states' laws do not list a

firm speed. He read an exanple from the lowa |aw He said he
tends to favor that approach, because Alaska roads are so
diverse in their conditions.

Number 1759

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that [HB 438] was patterned after a
Texas law, which is not included in the packet. He said he
sonmewhat concurs with [Representative G uenberg]. He expl ai ned

that "we were pronoting this because it was what was asked of us
" He said he would not have any angst over changing it.

Nunber 1782

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested the committee consider [sone
of the other states' |aws]. He indicated parts of the Ceorgia
| aw as an exanple of a commobn sense approach. Representati ve

G uenberg pointed out that another circunstance, besides that of
a person on the side of the road rendering assistance, mght be
a road block situation set up to check for people driving under

the influence (DU). He said a bonb scare situation is another
exanpl e.

Nunber 1907

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated his intent is to nove the bill from
committee today. He said he had planned to consider [Section 1,
paragraph (2)] in nore detail; however, he would |like the House

Judiciary Standing Commttee to address that part of the bill
Number 1925

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that in some construction areas there
are signs posted that warn drivers that the penalty for
exceeding the speed limt is double what it would nornmally be in
t hat zone. He asked if Section 1, [paragraph] (2), would be a
good place to add | anguage doubling whatever penalty there m ght
be.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "I don't see any of these having

a Cass A m sdeneanor and being based on injury." He turned to
[ paragraph] (b) and noted that an infraction, as defined in AS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2004



11.81.900, is sonething that is not punishable by inprisonnent,
but by a fine of up to $500. He nmentioned a step increase.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN reiterated his idea of mrroring the fines
used in construction zones.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded, "W're going fromnothing to an
infraction, and now we're talking about doubling it." He
poi nted out that doubling [fines] in a construction zone works,
because "you have advertisenent over a long period of tinme that
tells people.” He pointed out that there wouldn't be a notice
on the back of every [energency] vehicle letting drivers know
that if they don't nove over they will be issued a double fine.

Nunber 2017

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Isn't there something on the
books al ready about this, in this state?"

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM answer ed he does not believe so.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that there is
sonmething called the Uniform Traffic Act in the regulations. He
added, "I'msurprised that that's not covered."

Nunber 2004

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that under basic speed |aws, there
are "sone things they can do," but he said he thinks it's "a
hi gher level of proof." He also pointed out that road etiquette
is taught, but, to his know edge, there is no enforcenent
mechani sm

Nunber 2048

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said having this specific requirenent
draws a very nuch heightened awareness, so people taking
driver's tests can see that there is a different circunstance
when there is an energency vehicle than the basic speed |aw
under which a driver is supposed to use due caution. Therefore,
he said he thinks it's beneficial.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he doesn't know if there's a penalty
even for [not] pulling over for an energency vehicle that is
comng up behind a driver. He suggested there could also be a
hei ght ened awar eness of that.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 9, 2004



Nunber 2097

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that Al aska does not have many
roads with two |lanes in each direction. He said he is concerned
about people pulling over into an oncomng lane during icy
w nter conditions and causing an acci dent.

Nunmber 2136

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified for the record that Amendnment 2 had
not been adopted; the discussion held regarding [paragraph] (2)
woul d be held for the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred nenbers carrying the bill [to
the House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee] to "13AAC04090," which
he said is [in regard to] authorized energency vehicles and
l'ights.

Number 2149

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report HB 438, as anended, wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations, and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 438(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

HB 423- TAXI CAB DRI VER LI ABILITY

Number 2221

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 423, "An Act relating to accidents involving the
vehicle of a person wunder the influence of an alcoholic
beverage; and providing for an effective date.™

Nunber 2227

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the committee substitute
(CS) for HB 423, Version 23-LS1600\H, Luckhaupt, 3/8/04, as a

work draft. There being no objection, Version H was before the
comm ttee.

Number 2245

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out the follow ng changes that
had been incorporated into Version H On page 2, line 4, after
the phrase "notor vehicle owner", the words "or operator” had
been added; and a sunset clause was added [on page 2, |ine 26].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 9, 2004



He remarked that the effective date, which had been Section 3 of
Version D, was no | onger there.

[ The effective date, which was Section 3 of Version D, had
i nadvertently been renoved. ]

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that any other work that
needs to be done on HB 423 should be done in the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that his notes do not reflect that
the effective date had been renoved by the comittee at a
previ ous neeti ng.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said that although he does not see notations
regarding the renoval of the effective date in his notes, he has
no problemwth its renoval.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the sponsor's staff whether or
not he wants the effective date in the bill

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said [the effective date] would be 90 days after
"signature or passage" of the bill

Number 2360

JIM SHINE, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, Al aska State
Legislature, on behalf of Representative Anderson, sponsor,
stated that although he doesn't renenber discussion regarding
the renmoval of the effective date, he agrees wth Chair
Weyhr auch.

Number 2370

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested an anendnent to ratify the
renoval of the effective date clause. There being no objection,
it was so ordered.

Nunmber 2375

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report CSHB 423, [Version 23-
LS1600\ H, Luckhaupt, 3/ 8/ 04, as anmended, wi th individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes]. There being
no objection, CSHB 423(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

TAPE 04-33, SIDE B

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 9, 2004



Number 2380

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH restated the notion [in case it had been cut off
by the end of the tape].

HIR 31- CONST AM PERVANENT FUND

[ Contains brief nmention of HB 514.]
Nunmber 2354

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 31, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
permanent fund and to paynents to certain state residents from
the Al aska permanent fund; and providing for an effective date
for the anmendnents.

Number 2292

JOHN MALLONEE, Acting Director, Central Ofice, Child Support
Enf orcenent Division (CSED), Departnent of Revenue, in response
to a question from Chair Weyhrauch asking why the departnent has
an interest in [HIR 31], offered the foll ow ng:

Wth the distribution of $20,000 in this payout, child
support would <collect ... - if everyone who was
eligible filed for their dividend - about $240 mllion
in child support. O that $240 million, about $180
mllion of it wowuld go to custodial parents and
children in the state of Alaska, and then a sixty
additional mllion would be reinbursement for past
wel fare paynents: $30 nmillion, which would be
retained by the State of Al aska, and about $30
mllion, which would go to the federal governnent.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if the noney would go to the federal
government anyway, or if it would go sinply because of the |arge
anount of the payout.

MR. MALLONEE answered it would go to the federal governnent
regardl ess of how [the division] collected it. He expl ai ned
that since the governnment pays a portion of public assistance,
when noney is collected to reinburse public assistance, that
noney is split between the state and the federal governnent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 9, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if the large amount of noney M. Mallonee
previously referred to is a result of there being "that much
arrearage in child support paynments by ... residents of the
state.”

MR. MALLONEE answered that's correct. He stated that there
currently is approximately $583 million in child support owed in
the state of Al aska. In response to a followup question from
Chair Weyhrauch, he confirned that that anmount is owed by
noncust odi al parents in Al aska.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH asked what the long-term inplication would be

from no permanent fund dividend (PFD) being paid out on an
annual basi s.

MR. MALLONEE replied that the smaller amobunt of the checks would

be approximately $1.7 million that the state would |ose, or
about $3.4 mllion that it would lose from collections that
woul d reinmburse public assistance. Approxi mately another $6

mllion would be |lost to the custodial parents of the state. He
noted that CSED has collected "right at a little nore than $9
mllion in permanent fund since Cctober.”

Number 2156

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the conmttee substitute (CS)
for HIR 31, Version 23-LS1282\W He offered his understanding
that the paynents would end after fiscal year (FY) 2010. He
asked if that would nake the collection of child support after
that date nore problematic in sonme cases.

MR.  MALLONEE responded that it [would] nake <child support
"sonewhat nore problematic to collect” if there is no permanent
fund. He said, "Wt do, in fact, receive quite a bit of nopney on
cases that we would not otherwise receive during the year.
[ For] many of the cases [for] which there's a m ni mum $50 order
the entire order gets paid for the entire year out of the
per mnent fund."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his recollection that there is a
provision in HB 514 that would allow CSED to access people's
PFDs, "even if they are reluctant or refuse to apply for them
t hensel ves. "

MR MALLONEE confirmed that is true.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that, in sonme cases, [the PFD] is
the only source of child support paynents. He renmarked that
sonetinmes people are reluctant to apply because they are
enbittered, for exanple, and don't want to support their
children. He asked, "So, this may, in fact, after 2010 nake it
i npossible to get child support fromthese people, right?"

MR. MALLONEE answered that's correct. He stated that there is a
possibility that if there were no annual permanent fund payouts,
"there woul d be sone cases of which we would not get paynents.”

Nunmber 2069

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM on that point, asked how many people that
woul d affect.

MR. MALLONEE responded, "W wusually get approximately 10,000 to
12,000 PFDs in a year." He estimated that, of that nunber,
perhaps as nmuch as 30 percent of those are "cases of which we
get no other paynment during the year."

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM responded that he would "take issue wth
that,"” unless M. Ml lonee can give the conmttee sone enpirica
data. He suggested the percentage could vary greatly.

MR. MALLONEE told Representative Holm that he is correct.
Furthernore, he said he doesn't have enpirical data with him
however, in response to Chair Wyhrauch, he said he woul d supply
that data as soon as possible.

Nunber 2020

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked when the one-tine payout to
individuals occurs. In response to a question by Representative
Holm he clarified that he was referring to page 2, line 23
t hrough page 3, line 6, which read as foll ows:

(c) Section 15 of Article IX as it read on June

30, 2004, applies to appropriations for fiscal year
2005. Not wi t hstanding Section 15(b) of Article 1X
appropriations from the permanent fund nay not exceed
the follow ng anbunts for the follow ng fiscal years:

(1) fiscal year 2006 - five percent of the
mar ket val ue of the fund on June 30, 2005;

(2) fiscal year 2007 - five percent of the
average of the market values of the fund on June 30,
2005, and June 30, 2006;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 9, 2004



(3) fiscal year 2008 - five percent of the
average of the market values of the fund on June 30,
2004, June 30, 2006, and June 30, 2007;

(4) fiscal year 2009 - five percent of the
average of the market values of the fund on June 30,
2005, June 30, 2006, June 30, 2007, and June 30, 2008.

(5) fiscal year 2010 - five percent of the
average of the market values of the fund on June 30,
2005, June 30, 2006, June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008, and
June 30, 2009.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM expl ai ned, "Those are in reference to the
percent of market value [POW] (indisc. - coughing) of the fund
after it's been split.” In response to a followup question
from Representative Seaton, he clarified that there would be a
one-tinme payout and, in addition to that, there also would be a
payout for the year 2004.

Number 1962

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN rem nded the commttee that at a previous
neeting he had asked for information on how "this" would affect
eligibility for public assistance prograns, in terns of welfare,
Medi caid, and low inconme housing, for exanple. He asked if
there had been a response to that request.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if M. WMl lonee could address
t hat questi on.

MR. MALLONEE said no, but suggested the question could be
deferred to soneone fromthe D vision of Public Assistance.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN clarified that he wants information
regarding any program where a person's yearly inconme m ght
effect the benefit he/she mght get. He explained that a
person's getting "all this noney at one tinme" would change that
person's yearly inconme, obviously.

Number 1914

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that if "the PFD fol ks go away," that
would save $5.2 nillion a year in dissolving that departnment.
The cost of managi ng what would then be a slightly smaller fund
woul d be reduced by $8.2 nillion a year. Child support would
get approximately $240 mllion in additional revenue, while
student loan arrears would be paid "to the tune of about $50

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 9, 2004



mllion," he stated. He said there would be positive outcones
to the state's budget.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that he thinks the [resolution] is a
good concept that needs consideration. He said he is anxious to
see [HIR 31] nove forward.

Number 1791

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG recalled that there is case |law from
the supreme court that allows judges in certain child support
cases to require that part of a fund [from a |arge payout, such
as an inheritance] be sequestered and set aside in a trust fund
to ensure that the child would be supported.

MR. MALLONEE noted that on several occasions where there has
been a history of poor paynents and an individual has conme into
a large sum of noney, the court has taken that noney "through
the majority of the child®" and placed it in trust. He added,
"In a couple of those cases, we've actually handled the trust
account for it."

Nunber 1812

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that, if this <constitutiona
amendnent is put before the voters and ratified, virtually
everyone in the state will be receiving a |large sum of noney,
including people who have poor histories of <child support
paynent s. He asked if the CSED would plan to vigorously

inplenent a program to sequester those funds in appropriate
cases before the | arge payouts are received.

MR. MALLONEE responded that "we" have discussed the issue with
the attorney general's office, and he indicated that [if] the
payout takes place, "we" would attenpt to see if the court would
allow [CSED] to sequester the noney through the mgjority of the
chi | d.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if [CSED] has the necessary

statutes in place "to do that now on a large scale.” He
clarified that he is concerned that if the issue is put before
the voters later this year, "these people” could get the noney

before [CSED] could get the programin place.

MR. MALLONEE replied that he is not certain that there currently
is a statute in place that would cover a program "that would do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 9, 2004



this."” He said he thinks it would have to be "made as an
i ndi vi dual case by case, based on that poor paynent."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Mallonee to consider the
issue, in order to avoid an opportunity being lost to children
forever.

Number 1703
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if [CSED] has the ability to adopt
regul ati ons on an energency basis to handle an outflow of funds

"l'ike this."

MR. MALLONEE said he would have to check with the attorney

general's office on that. He clarified, "W can, obviously,
make energency regulations, as can any agency under certain
circunstances; |'m just not sure under what statute that would
fall

Nunmber 1665

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Mallonee if he is aware of any
ot her prograns, other than the state student |oan program and
child support enforcenent, that would be recouping noney "if
soneone's circunstance changed because they cane into a large
anount of noney."

MR. MALLONEE said he doesn't have that infornmation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that a certain percentage of the
funding for the Violent Crinmes Conpensation board cones fromthe
PFDs of felons. He indicated that there mght be state,
federal, and private creditors that would "really have first
goal on this noney."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the commttee needs to
consider this issue further.

Number 1575
MR. MALLONEE, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, confirmed that [the CSED] is allowed to collect

spousal support, but only in connection with a child support
order.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG added to his previous request and asked
M. Mallonee to also include [instances where spousal support is
col | ected].

Nunmber 1515

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH opi ned that the current discussion "goes to the
i mpact of this resolution.™

Nunber 1499

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN indicated that this is a policy matter. He
said he knows nmany people who really suffer because child
support has not been paid. He also stated that he thinks [the
$20, 000 payout] would be a good thing for seniors who would not
ot herwi se |live |long enough to accrue the whol e anount.

Nunber 1458

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG opined that there needs to Dbe
consideration of legislation to ensure that "this can't be used
on a nmassive scale to defraud a |lot of creditors.™

Number 1422

DONALD ANDERSON told the conmmttee that although he is the
manager of the Software North Conpany, he is testifying on
behal f of hinmself to address the federal inconme tax effects of
the PFD and the proposed $20,000 distribution. He said he has
been a conputer progranmmer for 39 years and his specialty is the
devel opnent of conputer nodels to sinulate "real world events.™
He stated his intent today is to comment on the effect of the
f eder al income tax on the PFD, and its effect on the
extraordinary distribution, such as the $20,000 proposed in HIR
31. The sinmulations, he explained, involve a [Mcrosoft] Exce

spreadsheet and a program such as TurboTax. He said the
| nt er nal Revenue Service (IRS) only releases tax incone
statistics as an overall state average and in 12 categories of
i ncome; however, he explained that this uncertainty is not |arge
enough to change the general effect of what he is currently
reporting to the commttee.

MR. ANDERSON stated that he believes everyone who prepares
federal tax returns for a PFD recipient is famliar with line 21

of form 1040, which is the "other incone" Iine. He said it
feeds, without nodification, into each taxpayers adjusted gross
i ncone. Thus, for anyone above the standard or item zed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 9, 2004



deduction, it directly affects the tax paid. M. Anderson noted
that the nost recent tax year for which the IRS sumary sheets
are available for Alaska taxpayers is 2001. He said he
calculated the effects of the $1,850 PFD paid in that year, for
that year's recipient, and he sinulated the effect of a $20, 000
payout .

MR. ANDERSON stated that, in 2001, Al askans paid about $186
mllion in federal taxes on their PFDs, which was 17 percent of
the total anount distributed. Had a $20,000 payout been in
effect that year, Alaskans would have paid about $2.9 billion
extra in federal taxes - approximately 23 percent of the anount
pai d out.

MR. ANDERSON explained that this is inportant when considering
enacting a state sales tax or income tax to provide a portion of
the funding for state governnent. He continued to read his
testinmony [included in the commttee packet] as foll ows:

If the state, on one hand, distributes noney on which
our citizens pay a hefty federal incone tax, and then
charges those citizens an equivalent tax to support
state governnment, the big wnner is the federal
gover nnent .

The state and its citizens are inpoverished to the
tune of as nmuch as $186 nillion a year for the PFD and
woul d have to endure the departure of $2.9 billion
nore if this extraordi nary paynent were to occur.

|"ve rerun this sinmulation with the lower tax rates in
effect for the 2003 tax year and have found that
Al askans woul d | ose about 15 percent of any "tax back”
- up to $115 mllion - if the entire $1,108 PFD was
pul |l ed back to the state by taxation.

If the $20,000 payout had been attenpted in 2003,
about 23 percent would depart in federal taxes. Any
part of this that was taxed back to the state in
future years would unnecessarily suffer from this 23
percent shri nkage.

The foregoing comments apply directly to forner
Governor Hammond's new PFD and tax plan - but that’s
anot her topic. Attenpting to bribe our citizens into
relinquishing the PFD by subsidizing the federal
treasury is a poor strategy. Using the mninmm PFD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 9, 2004



earnings necessary to fund state governnent is the
only wviable, long-term strategy producing m ninmm
damage to the state.

MR. ANDERSON - with apologies to Representative Holm whom he
said has benefited the state greatly by focusing serious
attention "on this area" - stated his belief that HIR 31 should
be retitled the "IRS enrichnment resolution of 2004." He
encouraged the committee to give the [resolution] a "do not
pass" reconmendati on.

MR. ANDERSON supplied the conmttee with his e-muil address and
offered to send his Excel spreadsheet [included in the conmttee
packet] . In response to a request made by Representative
Gruenberg, he agreed to send his updated testinony, not only to
the House State Affairs Standing Committee, but also to the
House Special Conmmttee on Ways and Means [included in the
comm ttee packet].

Nunmber 1095
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HIR 31 was heard and hel d.

HB 527- ALASKA SECURI TI ES ACT

Nunber 1015

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 527, "An Act relating to the Al aska Securities
Act, including reports, proxies, consents, authorizations, proxy
statenents, and other materials, civil penalties, refunds of
proceeds from violations, restitution, and investnent adviser
representatives; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 1020

MARK  DAVI S, Director, Di vision of Banki ng, Securities &
Cor porations, Departnment of Conmunity & Regional Devel opnent
(DCED), testified on behalf of DCED to outline three things [HB
527] would acconplish that the division thinks are inportant.
He continued as foll ows:

First, we are proposing lowering the jurisdictional
threshold for the reporting (indisc.) corporation

"proxi mators, " from 500 shar ehol ders to 250
sharehol ders, and [elimnating] the assets threshold
of $1 mllion. Currently, the book value of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 9, 2004



corporations is sonewhat at issue, and we're proposing
just going on the nunber of shareholders. W' ve
received sone conplaints from smaller corporation
shar ehol ders t hat t hey are not sensitive to

shar ehol der rights. We're proposing lowering the
threshold to bring those smaller corporations wthin
the division's proxy jurisdiction. I woul d enphasis,

however, that it only affects proxy matters.

MR DAVIS, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, clarified that [the corporations being discussed] are
only Native corporations. He <continued his testinony as
fol | ows:

Second, the bill would raise the maxinum |evel of

fines the division has the authority to inpose under

the Al aska Securities Act. Presently, the upper limt

of fining authority is $25,000 for nultiple know ng
of fences, and we're proposing an increase to $100, 000.
That would bring it in line with the federal |I|aw,
which is 15 U S. C 771(a), which allows for a maxi num
fine of $100, 000.

| would note that the states are all over the map on

this issue. One state - Mntana - shows $5, 000.
O her states, such as Mssouri, are as high as a half
a mllion dollars. But we're proposing $100,000 so
that we're in line with the federal securities |aw.

There's been no change to the civil penalties since
1988, and we would be able to bring nore significant
enforcenment actions, we think. W have added
investigators to the division, and we are in line with
doing nore investigations in conjunction with the SEC
[U S. Securities and Exchange Conmm ssion].

Number 0901

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that Eliot Spitzer, the attorney general
of New York, often "leads the curve" on corporate m sdeeds and

wr ongdoi ng i nvestigations. He revealed that M. Spitzer's
aggressive advocacy for consumers and residents of New York, in
bringing to [|ight m sdeeds by nutual funds and other
corporations, has effected his own personal decisions on how he
invests his noney. He also expressed outrage that "some of
these activities occurred.” He asked M. Davis if there is an
incentive for the attorney general of New York to bring those
kinds of enforcenent actions - because of the enforcenent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 9, 2004



penalties that he may bring to bear - that could benefit Al aska
and provide an incentive for M. Davis's office or [an incentive
for] the attorney general's office to be the kind of attorney
general that M. Spitzer seens to be.

Nunmber 0818

MR. DAVIS responded, "Well, | really can't speak for Cenera
Spitzer, but | ... think that if we have the ability to nake
significant fines, that if we fine violations, then we can nmake
sonething stick." He stated that [Alaska] suffered from the

Wrld Plus Ponzi schenme several years ago, and that case was
brought by the SEC. He said he would have preferred that it had
been brought by state authorities. He indicated that the goa
is for aggressive state enforcenent.

MR. DAVI S conti nued as foll ows:

That dovetails with this other part of this bill,
which is restitution. Federal securities |laws in nost
states have restitution, and restitution orders are an
inportant part of getting the noney back to the
victinms' pockets. There's been criticism in the

busi ness press of the SEC settlenment Act - and that
i ncludes [Attorney] General Spitzer - that the SEC put
the noney back in the federal treasury and not into
the pots of the investors. So, our goal here is to
add nore "encl osurenent” and put the noney back.

Number 0772

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he wonders if [the legislature] could give
[the division] any tools to do what needs to be done to
anticipate problenms that would benefit the Al aska consuner, as
wel | as benefit the state treasury.

MR. DAVI S responded that certainly greater fines would be useful
for the treasury. He noted that three enpl oyees have been added
to the "security section" since he's been appointed. He added,
"And | think that we obviously would wel cone oversights of our
budgetary process."”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH enphasized, "If | can increase the fines and
penalty enforcenent actions available to the State of Al aska and
the state receives a positive revenue benefit from that, while
absol utely punishing these people, I'm going to |ook for every
possible way to do it."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he echoes that. He said he thinks

[HB 527] is a marvelous bill, and he would Iike the commttee to
consider what it can do to provide sone "tough on crine
protection,” particularly for the Al aska consuners. He asked

M. Davis if his division has authority over the Al aska Takeover
Bid Di sclosure Act.

MR. DAVIS replied he doesn't know.
Nunber 0667

VI NCE USERA, Senior Securities Exam ner, Division of Banking
Securities & Corporations, Departnment of Community & Econom c
Devel opnent (DCED), in response to Representative Guenberg's
guestion, said, "W do."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered hi s recol |l ection t hat
[ Al aska' s] Takeover Bid Disclosure Act is unconstitutional under
a US. Suprene Court decision. He asked M. Usera if he is
awar e of that decision.

MR. USERA answered yes and added that he agrees wth that
assessnent.

Nunmber 0605

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to work with "these
fol ks" and see if an anendnent to the bill could be nade to cure
the constitutional problem with a new Al aska Takeover Bid
Di scl osure Act.

MR. USERA responded that he would be pleased to work wth
Representati ve G uenberg.

Nunmber 0566

FRED TRIEM Attorney at Law, testifying on his own behalf, told
the commttee that his practice focuses alnost exclusively on
representing individual Alaska Natives who sue their Native
corporation on account of mstreatnent. He noted that he is
involved in a case in Juneau today which involves an inpairnent
of sharehol der voting rights.

MR. TRIEM stated he supports [HB 527], but wth two

qualifications. He stated his first concern that the proposed
l egislation is wunderinclusive and wll |eave behind a |large

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 9, 2004



nunber of Native people sinply by virtue of the arbitrary cutoff
of 250 sharehol ders. He suggested the committee expand the
scope of the legislation and protect everybody. He opined that
a corporation with 250 shareholders is no nore deserving of
having its shareholders protected than another corporation wth

50-100. He revealed there are sone outrageous things that
happen in Al askan Native corporations, for which there is no
present protection. He offered an exanple involving the Tetlin

Native Corporation, near Tok, where the |and was conveyed from
the Native village corporation to the |local tribal council,
reduci ng ownership from 125 to 60 people.

MR. TRI EM expl ai ned that, "under the current schene,” individua
sharehol ders are not really able to protect their interests,
because, "under the doctrine of rationale sharehol der apathy, a
| ot of shareholders - each owning a ... small fraction of the
corporation in stock that cannot be alienated ... - have no way
to pay for reinforcenment action if it's brought privately."
They cannot hire an attorney because their stock is worth so
little and produces so little incone that "a rationale
shar ehol der woul d be apathetic.™

MR. TRI EM suggested that the only protection that "these people"
can have is through the D vision of Banking Securities &

Cor por ati ons. He opined that it's arbitrary to cut off the
corporations that have fewer than 250 sharehol ders. For the
record, he noted that there are about 270 Alaska Native
cor porations. The nunber was approximately 310, but sonme of

them have coal esced by nergers, either anong those corporations
or between village corporations and the regional corporations,
of which there are 12 in Al aska.

Number 0327

MR TRIEM turned to his second suggestion for anending the
proposed |egislation, which he said focuses on the issue of
penal ties. He told the commttee about a corporation that held
an annual neeting, at which sone sharehol ders brought a petition
to recall the directors. He opined that it was a stroke of
genius when the directors printed the ballot wthout any boxes
on it; therefore, there was no way for the shareholders to vote
yes or no on the recall. He said they alnost got away with it,
but sone sharehol ders conpl ai ned. The division found that the
conduct was intentionally wong and "fined them a couple

t housand dollars.” He first asked the commttee to guess who
paid the fine, then revealed that it was the sharehol ders that
paid it. He explained that "they" got the corporate treasurer

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 9, 2004



to wite the check. He concluded that, by foiling the recall
el ection, the directors nmanaged to get the corporation to pay
for their wongdoing so they could stay in office. He reveal ed
that that is the thenme of the case in which he is presently
i nvol ved.

MR. TRI EM suggested that the legislation include a provision to
allow the division to directly fine the wongdoers. He asked
the commttee to consider the salaries nmade by the directors.
He noted that the [U S ] Census data shows that the average
Al aska Native has a cash incone of approximtely $10, 000-$11, 000
a year. In conparison, he noted that the top three officers at
Cook Inlet Region, Inc. have each averaged conpensation in
excess of $ 1 million, for the years 1999-2001. He posited that
the directors have the noney to pay for the crinmes thenselves if
only the law would allow it. He indicated that there should be
a "biglimt." He added, "W don't want to ... stick with the
little one that we've got now, because it has no teeth.”

Nunber 0120

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH enphasi zed that [HB 527] was not introduced to
target Native corporations, shareholders, or officers and
di rectors. He told M. Triem "W want to have as nuch
objective testinmnony as possible, as well as addressing the
concerns that you' ve raised that sound serious.”

Number 0072

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated he is curious as to M. Trienms
concept of wunpaid nenbers of boards of directors and their
"ability to pay." He opined that those who do not get
conpensation - unpaid nenbers of boards - certainly should not
be fined at the same level as those [who] are enriching
t hensel ves. He asked for M. Trienmls comments.

TAPE 04-34, SIDE A
Number 0001

MR. TRIEM said he doesn't think the division would inpose heavy
fines on unpaid volunteer directors. Conversely, he clarified
that he is suggesting that when the directors do have the
financial ability to pay fines, those fines should be in
proportion to their personal wealth. He said the current Martha
Stewart case is a wdely publicized exanple of balancing
financial penalties with wealth.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 9, 2004



Nunmber 0069

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said that corporate nalfeasance seens
to be a wuniversal problem He said he doesn't think any
suggestion that it is particular to Native corporations was
intended. He said he wants to raise an issue for the commttee

to address as it contenplates the bill, which is that the
penalties, in some ways, when tied just to a straight fine or
nunerical amount, "don't get to the potential benefit of
commtting the crine.” He suggested sone kind of disgorgenent
of the profits or the benefits ought to be required as part of
the crimnal penalty. He added, "I don't know how it works in
the federal system | haven't |ooked around it."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ concurred with M. Triem's suggestion
to hold officers individually liable for acts and allow ng for

soneone to |look at securities issues that are "ultra vires." He
said, "If you want to deter wongdoing, then you need to hold
peopl e accountable. It's unfortunate when people act outside of

the scope of their responsibility and rely on the corporate
structure to protect individual wongdoing, and anything we can
do to get at that, we ought to do."

Number 0194

MR. TRI EM suggested the conmttee could anend the legislation in
anot her way, which would be to allow the division to sanction
directors for their msconduct, not just with a nonetary fine,
but also to renobve them from office, or to prevent them from

serving on the board. He added that the SEC has that
regul ati on, and the superior court can do that, because there is
a statute that allows it. However, he clarified that there is

no adm ni strative authority.

HB 431- MUNI Cl PAL DI VI DEND PROGRAM

Nunber 0311

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 431, "An Act relating to the nunicipal dividend
program and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0318

ADAM BERG Staff to Representative Carl Mses, Alaska State

Legislature, testified on Dbehalf of Representative Moses,
sponsor . In response to a request from Chair Wyhrauch, he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 9, 2004



offered a brief overview of the bill. He stated that, after
permanent fund dividends (PFDs) are accounted for and "inflation
proofing has been taken care of," a set anount of nobney would be

distributed to each nmunicipality in the state. The anount of
noney would be set at $250 per person. Popul ation woul d be
determ ned by the nunber of PFD recipients. There would also be
a "basenent" at $40,000 to a nunicipality. He said, "In the
event that the earnings reserve account doesn't have enough
noney to pay the total package of what ... that anmount woul d be,

we'd go with the | ower anount.”
Number 0488

DOUG STARK, Ph.D., Cty Council nenber, Cty of Honmer, told the
commttee that the Gty of Honmer adopted unaninously a
reconmendati on endorsing [HB 431]. He noted that the commttee
had net yesterday, from 9:00 a.m to 11:40 p.m, spending the
majority of that tinme trying to determne "what the fisca
possibilities were in the future,” because [the City of Homer]
has been heavily inpacted by the reduction and elimnation of
state revenue sharing and also the dramatic increase in
i nsurance costs. He said he thinks [HB 431] is an excellent
bill, and he offered to answer questions.

[HB 431 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 459- PAPER TRAI L FOR ELECTRONI C VOTI NG MACHI NE

Nunmber 0575

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the |ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 459, "An Act requiring an auditable paper trail
for electronic voting nachines; and providing for an effective
date."

Number 0598

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Al aska State Legislature, testifying as
sponsor of HB 459, stated that the proposed |egislation provides
a very easy solution to a potentially significant problem In
the wake of the 2000 [presidential] election, he noted, a |ot of
debate began regarding how votes should be counted in the

future. He nentioned unfair treatnment of handi capped voters
because of the voting nachines used [that were not handi capped
accessi bl e] . He said there currently is a nove across the

country to adopt digital voting machines; the State of Al aska
has purchased, roughly, 55 of them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that these nachines opened the door

to potential fraud and abuse. He nentioned there have been
accidental vote counts around the country. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, he expressed that the machines will read the ballot to the
voter and they are voice activated. Also, the voter can touch a
screen to cast his/her ballot. Referring back to the problem
with the digital voting machines, he explained that because
there is no paper trail, the person's vote is sent el sewhere and

IS never seen again.

Nunmber 0781

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered his wunderstanding that there is a
machine called "AccuVote,” into which a voter puts his/her
"card." That card is never seen again, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained the difference between AccuVote
and "this next step of electronic voting"” as follows:

At the end of the day, wth AccuVote, or any other
voting nmechanism we've used for the l|ast 200 years

there's a piece of paper that shows how you voted.
And if anybody has any questions as to whether or not
the vote count was accurate, you can go |ook at those
pi eces of paper and see what the actual vote was, and
you can denmand a recount.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA revealed that "this next | evel of
t echnol ogy" | eaves no paper trail; a vote is cast and there is
nothing left in the systemto prove that vote.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated that inplicit in a bill like [HB 459] is
a mstrust of the system He opined that voting is "one of the
nost inportant and sacred things we do as citizens." He

expressed that there is a trust placed in people who handle
ball ots and do recounts, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that is true. He posited that, across
the country, voting officials have done an admrable |ob.
However, he pointed out that if there is ever a question, "you
always get to go back to a paper record to see how people
voted." Representative Gara stated that although he is
unconfortable with "this next |evel of technology,” there is an
easy fix to it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 9, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA, returning to the problem again, offered the
following exanple: In Fairfax, Virginia, a couple of candi dates
in a school board election questioned the results of that
election so nuch that they got a court to require that the
division of elections analyze what happened to the voting
machi nes. It was discovered that because of a progranm ng
error, one out of every one hundred ballots "were given to the
opposi ng candi date when they were cast for the first candidate.”
The only reason that could be proved, he said, is because the
software glitch was discovered. Representative Gara also
of fered an exanple of a glitch that happened in California.

Number 0923

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that Representative Sharon C ssna
once lost an election by one vote, and he said he wants to
underscore the inportance of having sone way to recount votes.

Nunmber 0998

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how difficult it would be to [find]
a paper trail on the nmachines that have been purchased by the
State of Al aska.

Number 1006

LEONARD JONES, Elections Special Assistant, Central Ofice,
Division of Elections, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, turned
to the fiscal note provided by the division. He indicated that
the paper trail is still "in research and devel opnent.” He
mentioned an estimated cost of $500-$1,000 per unit. Currently,
he noted, there are 441 precincts, and [the division] plans to
purchase 441 touch-screen nachines, totaling $441, 000. He said
there would also be the cost of the special paper the machine
takes, which would be $1,800 [per roll]. Approxi mately two
rolls per precinct would be needed. The total anpbunt needed
fromHAVA [Hel p Anerica Vote Act] funds woul d be $442, 000.

MR JONES, in response to a question by Representative
Berkowi tz, confirmed that HAVA funds [are] federal funds. I n
response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, he reported that
HAVA passed in QOct ober 2002.

Number 1060

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what t he adm ni stration's
position is on the bill

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 9, 2004



MR. JONES offered his wunderstanding that [the division] wl
follow the direction of the I|egislature. He added that [the
division] wants to give the touch-screens it has purchased a

chance. He said [the division] wunderstands that there are
potentials for problens; however, it is confident its staff wll
try to avoid those glitches, should they occur. He i ndicated

that a proposed pilot project [which would incorporate the new
equi pnent] may or may not take place in the upcom ng el ections.

Nunber 1135

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he is "wondering how this specifically
works." He pointed out that a paper trail could be abused, as
wel | . Part of the abuse, he explained, could be how the
dat abase is accessed. He said, "And so, | would be curious as
to how we would have a protection that voters' votes aren't
passed on to others through this type of a scenario.” He asked

M. Jones to think about that and provide the comrittee with
"sone better information" [at the next hearing on HB 459].

Number 1215

MR. JONES agreed to do so.

Nunber 1220

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH told M. Jones that he would like information
from the departnent regarding hackers and how secure Al aska's
el ectronic voting systemis going to be. He said he also wants
to know if a paper trail will actually offer nore protection.

[ HB 459 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ OURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:57
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 9, 2004



